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Lady Elizabeth Greville: An effigy, carved from Nottingham or Burton 
alabaster, of Lady Greville who was buried in the church 3/9/1619, is 
still preserved on the east wall of the south aisle (as this old photo 
shows, it used to stand in an upright position by the Denny memorial). 

The monument's inscriptions, 
however, have been lost. At one 
time this effigy was in a recum­
bent position, under a canopy 
supported with two marble pillars, 
over which was a coat of arms 
and an annexed inscription (see 
the Church Memorials project). 
The effigy was discovered during 
the 1860 restoration. 

Elizabeth had first married 

Henry Denny (1540-1574), son 
and heir of Sir Anthony Denny. 
She was in fact, Henry Denny's 

second wife. His first marriage, in 1560, was to Honora Grey (born 1540, 
buried 7/9/1569?), a relation of his second wife, and with whom he had 
six children. Elizabeth's maiden name was also Grey and she was a first 
cousin of Lady Jane Grey, who reigned as queen of England for 13 days. 
Her father was Lord John Grey (died 1564), a younger brother of Jane's 
father, Henry, 1st. Duke of Suffolk (1517-1554). Elizabeth had three 
children by Henry DenOYj a son named Henry who died without issue 
and two daughters that died in infancy. 

After Henry's death she married, on 13/11/1575, Sir Edward 
Greville of Harold's Park, Nazeing (born about 1542 and died 27/7/ 
1615)·Edward and Elizabeth had 3 sons and 8 daughtersj the first son 
died in infancy, the second, Philip, died without issue. The third, Sir 
Fooke (Fulke-a family name), was baptised 22/1/1579, inherited his 
father's title and became one of the band of gentlemen pensioners to 
King James I. Gentlemen pensioners were a troop of gentlemen of 
noble birth, which Henry VIII set up in 1539 as an aristocratic guard 
around the sovereign. 

One daughter, Helena, married a Sir William Maxey. Another, 
Elizabeth, married Sir Francis Swift, a great royalist and favourite of 
Charles I, on 18/6/1604. Sir Francis lived at Harold's Park which was 
owned by the Denny family. The land was sequestered in 1643, which 
means the income from the estate was forfeited. It was later 
redeemed by way of a single fine paid by James, Second Earl of 
Carlisle and second Lord Denny. James was referred to, at the time, as 
a "delinquent" which meant he was debarred from the Commons and 
lost all his Parliamentary privileges. 

A third daughter was Douglass and a fourth was named Frances 
(1578-1633). The lost inscription from her mother's tomb, records that 
she was married to John Chamberlaine, Esq. but other records say she 
was married three times, first of all to Lt. Col. Nathaniel West about 
1621j secondly to Abraham Piersey in 1625, and thirdly, to Sir Samuel 
Matthews (governor of Virginia) in 1629. 

A fifth daughter was Anne, born about 1579, and a sixth, Mary, 
born about 1582. She married a William Howard Henry Gummery. 
There may have been a second Mary, but the last daughter, Margaret, 
born about 1595 married Col. Godfrey Bosville on 2/12/1613. 

Halfhide Family: In the north aisle there is a stone to the memory of 
Edward Halfhide who died 4/9/1764, aged 72, and to Anne Halfhide 
who died in 3/1/178, aged 80. On the floor at the west end of the 
church is a stone over a vault of John Halfhide who died 14/10/1814 
aged 82 and Jane Halfhide, his wife, who died 13/5/1827, aged 76. A 
further stone by the west door states that this is the entrance to Mr 
Halfhide's vault. 

The Benefactor's Board on the south wall of the porch records 
John Halfhide as giving £200 in the Navy 5% annuities, with the 
dividends being applied to the Sunday School in the town and to the 
poor widows receiving pensions. More than 200 boys and girls were 
educated in the Sunday School. 

In 1790, in relation to an enquiry respecting its sale, there is a 
reference to a moity of the Corn Mill belonging to Sir William Wake 
and the other to Mr. Halfhide, the occupier. 
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There is a further reference, made on n/6/1809, to the purchase 
of the Corn Mill house, and other buildings near the church, for £9,500 
from John Halfhide by the Gunpowder Factory, then owned by the 
government (see also George Fawbert). There is a tombstone, in the 
churchyard to George Halfhide who died 1/8/1790 aged 62, and his son, 
Edward, who died 17/1/1806, aged 53. 

Hanchet Family: They have 
no actual monuments in the 
church, but as a family of 
local stonemasons, their 
work certainly is present, 
stretching back over two, or 
maybe three generations. 
Samuel Hanchet carried out 
the carving to the stone­
work around the inner door 
of the porch in 1853, which 
was restored by his brother 
John Hanchet, under the 
direction of the architect, 
Ambrose Poynter. John 
Hanchet may also have cut 
the inscription in two small 
stones recording the .enclo­
sure of the churchyard by a 
brick wall in 1829. He was 
the father of Edwin John 
Hanchet who succeeded to 
the business. 
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3 1. SUN STREET. 

William Hanchet executed the work on the War Memorial (see 
the advert opposite) in 1922. Edwin John Hanchet was in business at 31 
Sun Street in 1902 and John William Hanchet in 1926, and in 1929 at 
the same address. They no longer appear to have been in business, 
t hough, in 1937. 
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In ~897 he enlisted 
as a second lieutenant in 
the King's Roya l Rifle 
Corps. and served with 
distinction and bravery in 
the Boer wars, for which 
he was awarded the DSO. 
He married Daisy Ben­
ton in ~9n, following 
which he spent a great 
deal of time in France 
during the First World 
War, not only in action 
but also in strategic 
plann ing. He was promo­
ted to temporary Briga­
dier General in ~9~7 . 

In ~924 he was app­
o inted as a Justice of the Peace and Deputy Lieutenant of the County. 
In the same year he was also appointed as a Lieutenant Colonel to the 
General Staff Office at Western Command HQ. Chester. In ~932 he 
was promoted to Major-General. In ~939, at the outbreak of the 
Second World War, he was appointed as one of the four King's Mess­
engers whose job it was to convey highly confidential material to 
commanders in the field. In ~944 he was appointed High Sheriff of 
Northamptonshire. 

He had six great passions in his life; his family, his regiment, 
hunting, horses, dogs (not cats), and Courtenhall. He was also con­
cerned in the affairs of the County, holding many different offices. His 
achievements in the service of his country during three major wars 
we re outstanding and were publicly recognised. 

Finally, the second Funerary Hatchment, second from the west, 
on the north wall, commemorates Sir William Wake 8th Baronet 
(whose miniature portra it is shown here), born in ~742 and died 29/~O/ 
~785. He succeeded to the baronetcy on the death of his father in ~765· 
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He went to Eton and then, as a commoner, to Trinity College, 
Cambridge. He went on to be a student at Lincolns Inn . He married 
Mary Fenton on 6/6~765. She was the daughter and heiress of Richard 
Fenton of Bank Top, Yorkshire. They lived mainly in Waltham Abbey. 
He was elected MP for Bedford in ~774 and served as such for ten years. 
He was a strong critic of British policy during the American War of 
Independence: \\A mistaken sense of dignity in the American War has 
nearly ruined th is country". 

He suffered from ill-health throughout his life . He died at Walth­
am Abbey, on 29/~O/~785, after an illness lasting seven days, his body 
be ing taken to Courteenhall, Northants. for burial. His widow, Mary, 
d ied ~o/n/~823. Her hatchment is in the parish church of Courteenhall. 
It was during his time that the Abbey House was reported to have 
been pulled down, in ~770 . It was bu ilt in ~590 by Edward Denny, later 
Earl of Norwich and grandson of Sir Anthony Denny. 

Walton Family: There are two memorials to this family in the church . 
The Waltons were owners of the Waltham Abbey Gunpowder Mills for 
most of the ~8th C. There is a ledger stone to Anne Walton in the 
sanctuary, under the sedilia, which records that she was the second 
daughter of William and Phillipa, of Balham, Streatham, and died, 
unmarried, on 29/5/~772 aged 66. William's father came from Mortlake 
and Phillipa, nee Bourchier's, memorial is at Mickleham. She was 
born c. ~675 and died in ~749. 

The second memorial, to their second son John, is the northern­
most of the three black (Tournai) marble ledger slabs in front of the 
communion rail. This records that he married Hester Jacobsen eldest , 
of the daughters and co-heiress of Sir Jacob Jacobsen of Waltham­
stow, whom he survived and by whom he had no issue. He died on 
~9/7/~757 aged 58. He married Hester in ~732. She was the grand ­
daughter of Sir Gilbert Heathcote, Lord Mayor of London. Her father, 
Sir Jacob Jacobsen, was a director of the South Sea Company. 

William Walton signed his first contract with the Board of 
Ordnance for the supply of gunpowder in ~702. He died, intestate, in 
~7n aged 43, at Balham, Surrey, where he lived. As William died 
intestate, Phillipa only inherited one third of his estate, the rest being 
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held in trust to be divided between their ten children, nine of whom 
survived into adulthood. In January ~7~9 the trustees purchased the 
site on behalf of Phillipa and her children. The family connection with 
the Gunpowder Mills, therefore, continued. They were successfully run 
by Phillipa and her family, until bought out by the Board of Ordnance 
in ~787 for HO,OOO. Details of the deal were not completed, though, 
until ~795. 

Her son John was the first to run the works, followed after his 
death in ~757 by his brothers, first, Thomas (C17~0-~770) then Bour­
chier (died ~779) and finally James (died ~782) . From ~760- 2 Bourchier 
Walton was also a director of the East India Company which probably 
facilitated the agreement of the Board to the Waltons supplying the 
company with 300 barrels of gunpowder in ~762; a good example of 
the interlocking interests of the powder producers and the London 
mercantile and financial houses. The business was left to a nephew, 
John Walton (born ~720), and it was he who sold the mills to the gov­
ernment. Izaak Walton, the famous angler, was related to the family. 

Comfort Wilkes: His memorial was once in the church . He was a sure­
ty to the Victualler of the Turnpike Inn on the Lea in ~770 and ~773. 

Thomas Winspeare: He is named as a churchwarden on the ~744 
Benefactors board in the porch. He is, most likely, the grandson, 
known as Thomas IV, of a Thomas Winspear born in ~598 who became 
a churchwarden in ~643, and held office until his death when he was 
buried in the church on 22/9/~653. His son Thomas II inherited his pro­
perty. He is recorded as owning land in the vicinity of Warlies, Upshire, 
in ~637. He also owned a house in Sewardstone Street. Thomas I had 
bought a small cottage and orchard on the site in ~638-9 for £72 and 
extended the cottage to make a house. Thomas II was indicted at the 
Waltham memorial court and at the Assises for sodomy in ~669, and 
as this was a capital offence, he probably went into exile or hiding for a 
time. Later he must have returned, as he was buried here in ~695, 
leaving his house to his daughter Sarah for life and then to his 
grandson, the aforementioned Thomas IV. 
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In 1.9 r, a excavation was made of the site of this house in 
Sewards e So. ee (Nos. 46/68) which had been demolished in the 
early ~920S. is house, and others near it, were all cleared for re­
deve lop e i he ~960s. The property, on the east side of the street, 
had bee assed down to the 7th Thomas Winspeare who by the time 
he move 0 Montserrat in the West Indies in ~799, had sold it to a 
John Bla d. 

SEWARDSTONE STREET, c.1900. The large dilapidated house was built by 
a London mercer, Thomas Winspear, c.1640. Excavations in 1966 produced 
fine pottery and glass datable to 1669. 

Henry Wollaston: He was a Justice of the Peace in Waltham Abbey for 
many years; He officiated at the solemnisation of marriages, according 
to Cromwell's Acts, during the Commonwealth. His nephew, Francis' 
bust, in marble, is in the north aisle. In ~889 it was in place on the 
Smith tomb and, previous to that, it originally stood on top of his 
memorial on the wall of the north aisle. It was moved in the ~8th C 
when a gallery was put up and the two parts became separated. His 
memorial is, now, on the west wall of the porch and his ledger stone is 
near the inner west door of the church. It was taken up at some time 
and put back the wrong way round. It was originally in the chancel. He 
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